
  

 
 

 

NOTTINGHAM CITY COUNCIL 

CITY CENTRE FORUM 

 
Date: Monday, 23 February 2015 
 
Time:  3.30 pm 
 
Place: LB31 - Loxley House, Station Street, Nottingham, NG2 3NG 
 
 
Councillors are requested to attend the above meeting to transact the following 
business 
 

 
 
Acting Corporate Director for Resources 
 
Governance Officer: Phil Wye    Direct Dial: 0115 8764637 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

 Pages 

1  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 

 

2  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 

 

3  MINUTES  
Last meeting held on 24 November 2014 (for confirmation) 
 

3 - 6 

4  CITY CENTRE LANDSCAPE GOOD TO GREAT IMPROVEMENTS  
Report of the Corporate Director for Community Services and the 
Director of Sport, Culture and Parks 
 

7 - 14 

5  ON-STREET CHARITY COLLECTIONS IN THE CITY CENTRE  
Presentation by Angela Rawson, Licensing Manager, Nottingham City 
Council 
 

 

6  INTU BROADMARSH REDEVELOPMENT SCHEME  
Presentation by Adam Tamsett, General Manager, Intu Broadmarsh 
 

 

IF YOU NEED ANY ADVICE ON DECLARING AN INTEREST IN ANY ITEM ON THE 
AGENDA, PLEASE CONTACT THE GOVERNANCE OFFICER SHOWN ABOVE, IF 
POSSIBLE BEFORE THE DAY OF THE MEETING  
 

Public Document Pack



CITIZENS ATTENDING MEETINGS ARE ASKED TO ARRIVE AT LEAST 15 MINUTES 
BEFORE THE START OF THE MEETING TO BE ISSUED WITH VISITOR BADGES 

 

CITIZENS ARE ADVISED THAT THIS MEETING MAY BE RECORDED BY MEMBERS 
OF THE PUBLIC.  ANY RECORDING OR REPORTING ON THIS MEETING SHOULD 
TAKE PLACE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE COUNCIL’S POLICY ON RECORDING AND 
REPORTING ON PUBLIC MEETINGS, WHICH IS AVAILABLE AT 
WWW.NOTTINGHAMCITY.GOV.UK.  INDIVIDUALS INTENDING TO RECORD THE 
MEETING ARE ASKED TO NOTIFY THE GOVERNANCE OFFICER SHOWN ABOVE IN 
ADVANCE. 

http://www.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/


1 

NOTTINGHAM CITY COUNCIL  
 
CITY CENTRE FORUM 
 
MINUTES of the meeting held at LB31 - Loxley House, Station Street, 
Nottingham, NG2 3NG on 24 November 2014 from 15.40 - 16.32 
 
Membership  
Present Absent 
Councillor Michael Edwards (Chair) 
Jeff Allen (Vice Chair) 
Councillor John Hartshorne 
Councillor Anne Peach 
Adam Tamsett 
Councillor Dave Trimble 
Councillor Jane Urquhart 
 

Janine Bone 
Councillor Azad Choudhry 
Councillor Jon Collins 
Councillor Georgina Culley 
Councillor Chris Gibson 
Simon Gray 
Councillor Brian Grocock 
Councillor Nicola Heaton 
Councillor Nick McDonald 
Councillor David Mellen 
Inspector Shaun Ostle 
Steve Pashley 
Jennifer Spencer 
Tom Waldron-Lynch 
 

 
   
 
Colleagues, partners and others in attendance:  
 
 Matt Gregory - Policy and Research Manager 
Chris Henning - Director of Economic Development 
Catherine Mayhew - City Centre Co-ordinator 
Noel McMenamin - Governance Officer 
 
36  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

 
Councillor Chris Gibson 
Councillor Brian Grocock 
Councillor Nick McDonald 
Councillor David Mellen 
 
David Bishop 
Janine Bone (Adam Tamsett substituting) 
Jennifer Spencer 
 
37  DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS 

 
None. 
 
38  MINUTES 

 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



City Centre Forum - 24.11.14 

2 

The minutes of the meeting held on 1 September 2014 were confirmed and signed by 
the Chair. 
 
39  STUDENT HOUSING 

 
Matt Gregory, Policy and Research Manager, gave a presentation on City Centre 
student housing, providing the following information: 
 
(a) student numbers in Nottingham have risen from under 40,000 in 2003/04 to a 

peak of 52,000 in 2011/12. Figures had since stabilised at 50,000, of whom 
37,000 have term-time addresses within the Nottingham City boundary; 

 
(b) current planning policy promotes Purpose Built Student Accommodation 

(PBSA). PBSA bedspace numbers had doubled from 10,000 to 20,000 since 
2003/04; 

 
(c) benefits to Nottingham of PBSA included providing a wider range and quality 

of accommodation, reducing demand for traditional multiple-occupancy 
student housing and so helping release those properties for family use, and 
driving many of the City Centre development projects during the economic 
downturn; 

 
(d) recent anecdotal evidence suggests that the PBSA market may be 

approaching saturation, carrying the risk of less popular schemes being 
converted to poor quality general housing. Despite this, there is, for now, 
continued market demand for PBSA; 

 
(e) it is estimated that 30% of the 4,000 City centre flats built for the general 

housing market are also occupied by students; 
 
(f) recent change to national legislation makes it easier to convert office space to 

residential use, but experience to date is that only poor quality office stock has 
been converted; 

 
(g) amendments to the merging Local Plan policy will ensure future PBSA 

schemes are responding to identified need, and are designed to a high 
standard. 

 
During discussion, Committee members made the following points: 
 
(h) Mr Gregory explained that a comprehensive survey of PBSA provision, 

including rents information, was not yet completed. However, voids so far were 
a small percentage of total provision, suggesting saturation had not yet been 
reached; 

 
(i) Mr Gregory advised that it was premature to decide whether to halt new 

schemes to prevent oversupply until the PBSA survey was completed; 
 
(j) Forum members spoke favourably about the Graystacks student 

accommodation development on Castle Boulevard, which combined cutting 
edge design with a communal living experience favoured by students 

Page 4



City Centre Forum - 24.11.14 

3 

themselves. Student accommodation developers should be signposted to the 
development as the benchmark for future PBSA development, although 
foreign students still appeared to prefer stand-alone units.  

 
(k) Forum members acknowledged that a balance between quality of finish, 

quantity and density, cost and future adaptability was difficult to achieve; 
 
(l) a Nottingham BID representative expressed the view that the City Centre 

needed more Grade A office space, that developers were given an easy ride 
through being able to get out of providing or upgrading office space, and 
warned that Nottingham was in danger of developing a reputation as a 
‘campus town’ rather than as a regional ‘retail’ capital; 

 
(n) Mr Gregory expressed the view that there wasn’t a City Centre threshold for 

student accommodation, either in absolute terms or as a percentage of total 
accommodation. Several Forum members believed that a threshold did exist, 
and Mr Gregory undertook to confirm; 

 
(o) Mr Gregory was not aware of recent developments regarding a proposal for a 

multi-storey student accommodation development on the Cowie’s site, London 
Road; 

 
(p) several Forum members spoke of the need to avoid City Centre student 

accommodation oversupply so that areas didn’t suffer disproportionately from 
out-of-term student absences. 

 
RESOLVED to  
 
(1) note the presentation and discussion which followed; 
 
(2) request Mr Gregory to  
 

(a) inform the Forum and relevant decision takers of the outcomes the 
ongoing student accommodation survey; and  

 
(b) confirm whether there was a threshold in place for City Centre 

student accommodation, and, if so, what it was. 
 
 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



City Centre Forum 
23rd February 2015 

   

 Title of paper: City Centre Landscape Good to Great Improvements  

Director(s)/ 
Corporate Director(s): 

John Kelly,  Corporate Director for 
Community Services 
Hugh White,  Director of Sport, Culture 
and Parks  

Wards affected: Bridge 
 

Report author(s) and 
contact details: 

Eddie Curry, Head of Parks & Open Spaces 
Eddie.Curry@nottinghamcity.gov.uk , 0115 876 4982 

Other colleagues who 
have provided input: 

Catherine Mayhew, City Centre Coordinator 
catherine.mayhew@nottinghamcity.gov.uk, 0115 876 4938 

Date of consultation with Portfolio Holder(s) 
(if relevant) 

 

 

Relevant Council Plan Strategic Priority: 

Cutting unemployment by a quarter  

Cut crime and anti-social behaviour  

Ensure more school leavers get a job, training or further education than any other City  

Your neighbourhood as clean as the City Centre  

Help keep your energy bills down  

Good access to public transport  

Nottingham has a good mix of housing  

Nottingham is a good place to do business, invest and create jobs  

Nottingham offers a wide range of leisure activities, parks and sporting events  

Support early intervention activities  

Deliver effective, value for money services to our citizens  

 

Summary of issues (including benefits to citizens/service users):  
The report outlines proposals to improve the City Centre landscape and enhance the retail / visitor 
experience through an enhanced package of landscape improvements, floral features, new lighting 
and interpretive trails within the City Centre. 

 

Recommendation(s): 

1 Note the proposals for the City Centre Open Spaces / Landscape improvements as detailed in 
section 4.3. 

 
1. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
2.0   Background 
2.1  Nottingham is in the top 10 cities for growth in overnight domestic visitors, but 

currently its hotel occupancy rate operates at an average of 68.5%.  The visitor 
economy for the city is estimated to be worth £487m but it is recognised the city has a 
potential to achieve closer to £1bn with the right quality offers being put in place.  
Nottingham is the 13th most visited destination for international visitors. In 2011 
average day visitor spend in Nottinghamshire was £31.49, total of £932m. 

 
2.2 In 2014 the Council established the Good to Great Programme and set aside a three 

year funding package to drive forward a number of strategic projects aimed at 
improving the economic regeneration of the City centre and improving both the retail 
experience and visitor attractors in the City Centre.  

 
2.3   The programme included 5 thematic work strands including:-   

 1, To attract a new city centre commercial leisure development.  

 2, Development of a Nottingham Robin Hood October Festival (2015+). Page 7

Agenda Item 4

mailto:Eddie.Curry@nottinghamcity.gov.uk
mailto:catherine.mayhew@nottinghamcity.gov.uk


 3, Development and delivery of a major sporting and cultural events programme. 

 4, Activation for all city centre major public squares with supportive street activities 
programme across the calendar 

 5, Brand development and new walk developments for the different city centre 
Quarters. 

 
2.4    To better realise the potential of the City Centre as an attractor of visitors, and 

thereby as an employer of local people in the Retail/Hospitality/Leisure/Cultural 
sectors the activation Strand 4  and brand development Strand 5 have been 
designed to help support Nottingham’s retail and leisure offer by improving the visual 
appearance of the city centre and use of its public spaces, helping to establish 
positive public realm environments and attracting inward investment for broader 
leisure developments. 

 
 
3      Consultation 
3.1 The proposals have been developed in consultation with the Nottingham BID, 

Creative Quarter Company and Experience Nottinghamshire as well as an internal 
advice from the City Centre Coordinator, Highways and Urban Design teams. 
Ongoing consultation will continue as the projects reach a more confirmed detailed 
design stage.   

 
 
4  The Proposals 
4.1  The investment will be used to enhance and define a number of key gateways to the 

city centre and help define the entrances to the city centre’s retail, leisure and 
creative quarters.  This will include the development of the surrounding streetscape 
and installation of distinct horticultural floral sculptures and landscape improvements 
to frame and improve the entrances. In addition new city centre trails and walks will 
be established to link the quarters bringing out the history and untold stories of the 
areas. 
 

4.2  The proposals are designed to build on and add additional value to existing city 
centre improvement projects and will help drive forward a number of projects that 
have over recent years stalled or are currently incomplete.  

 
4.3 The outline proposals for the City Centre Open Spaces / Landscape improvements      
      project are as follows:-  
      Appendix 1: Plan of the Improvement project locations. Appendix 2 contains    
      examples of the projects. 
 
 

Project  
No  

Activity Items Detail 

1 
City Centre Interpretive 
Trail Infrastructure  
 

Audit & Map all existing City Centre features and 
bring forward a proposal to remove all redundant 
street interpretation. 

Page 8



 
 
 
5.0   Funding 
 
5.1 The outline proposals for the overall funding mix are as follows: 
 
 

2 
New Interactive 
Interpretation Trails  
 

Develop new interactive online trails and support 
with new on street infrastructure. 
New interpretation website to highlight and signpost 
to independent retail and leisure in Nottingham, 
including a range of new trail plans e.g. Robin 
Hood, Independent Shopping, Caves, Writers, Beer 
and Horticulture.  
 

3 
Entrance Enhancements 
 

Entrance features, dressing and banners along key 
independent shopping streets.  Identify location and 
commission a design to create a new entrance 
archway to one of the key independent retail 
streets. 

4 
Creative Street lighting 
scheme 
 

Creative street lighting scheme option to be 
developed and installed along the main areas in 
Hockley / Creative Quarter e.g. Pelham St and 
other key independent retail areas within the City 
Centre. 

5 
City Centre Tree 
replacement 

Removal of unsightly high tree stumps across the 
City, re-establishment of tree pit and replant with 
suitable tree species. 

6 

Specialist Landscape 
infrastructure 
Improvements  
 

 Maid Marion Way Phase 2 Landscape 
Improvements - To include new planting 
scheme from Castle Gate to Chapel Bar 
Island.  The scheme will complement the 
Phase 1 scheme and will include a range of 
shrubs and trees. The project will also revisit 
Phase 1 and carry out a full maintenance 
refresh.  

 Management and enhancement of the 
Market Square landscape features     

7 
Floral Dressing   
 

New creative planters / floral features to be 
designed and installed, including:  

 Heathcoat Street Planters  

 Carrington Street gateway floral feature at 
the station and hanging baskets leading to 
the Broadmarsh Centre. 

 Hanging baskets along Lister Gate and 
Wheeler Gate leading to the Market Square.  

 Continuation of planters on Canning Circus 
Island. 

 New larger than life sculptures to promote 
Clean and Green Priorities 

8 
Horticultural Sculpture 
Trail  

Build on existing horticultural sculptures and add a 
further 2 features to the horticultural trail 

Page 9



Project 
No  Activity Items £  

1 
City Centre Interpretive Trail 
Infrastructure  £         10,000.00  

2 New Interactive Interpretation Trails  £         20,000.00  

3 Entrance Enhancements  £         10,000.00  

4 Creative Street lighting scheme  £         50,000.00  

5 City Centre Tree replacement  £         39,000.00  

6 
Specialist Landscape infrastructure 
Improvements  £         46,595.00  

7 Floral Dressing   £         27,616.42  

8 Horticultural Sculpture Trail  £           6,763.58  

      

  TOTAL  £        209,975.00  

      

Funding    

Good to Great Funding NCC  
 £        105,000.00  

NCC City Services   £           3,000.00  

Area Capital Fund   £           2,500.00  

Nottingham BID   £           3,000.00  

Section 106  £         96,475.00  

Total Funding   £        209,975.00  

 
 
 
6.0 Timescales 
 
6.1 The outline timescales for the year 1 projects are as follows: 
 

 Existing interpretation trails to have been audited by end of March 2015 

 New interpretation trails to have been designed and in progress by end March 
2015 

 Design for entrance enhancements to have been commissioned and work 
ongoing into 2015 

 Creative lighting scheme to have been commissioned and work ongoing into 
2015 

 Landscape and tree planting to be completed by end of March 2015   

 Horticultural features materials purchased before end of March 2015 - 
Installation and maintenance summer 2015. 

 
7.0   OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED IN MAKING RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
7.1 An alternative option would be to not to carry out any improvement works. This option 

has been rejected as it would not help support and promote the City Centre retail and 
leisure offer and help to deliver the Council’s Good to Great initiative. 

 
 
8.0. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS (INCLUDING VALUE FOR MONEY/VAT) 
 
8.1 The proposed funding for the project is outlined in section 5.1 
 

Page 10



8.2    The Section 106 funding listed in Section 5.1 is from the following planning   
   application references  

 12/00598/PFUL3 - received 04/12/2013  

 13/00222/PFUL3 – received 13/12/2013.  
  Both developments took place in the City centre Area as the proposed use and the   
  sum is allocated for use on “Off Site Public Open Space” Within Nottingham City  
  Centre". 

 
 
9.0. RISK MANAGEMENT ISSUES (INCLUDING LEGAL IMPLICATIONS AND CRIME 
 AND DISORDER ACT IMPLICATIONS) 
 
9.1 The proposals will help improve the visual appearance of the city centre, help to 

increase visitor numbers and as a result will help contribute to an attractive and 
vibrant city centre which in turn will contribute towards the continued reductions in 
crime and anti social behaviour within the City Centre.  

 
 
10.0 EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT  
 
10.1 An EIA is not required as this report does not include proposals for new or changing 

policies, services or functions 
 
 
11.0 LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS OTHER THAN PUBLISHED WORKS OR 
 THOSE DISCLOSING CONFIDENTIAL OR EXEMPT INFORMATION 

 
None 

 
 
12.0 PUBLISHED DOCUMENTS REFERRED TO IN COMPILING THIS REPORT 
 

None  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Page 11



Appendix 1: Plan of the Improvement project locations. 
 

 
 

Nottingham City Centre: Good to Great

© Crown copyright and database right 2012. Ordnance Survey Licence number 100019317.

03-09-2013
0 100 20050

Meters ILegend

Horticultural Sculptures

New Horticultural Sculptures

Planting

Hanging Baskets

Landscape
Improvements

Banners
throoughout

Creative
Quarter

New
horticultural

features

Hanging Baskets

Horticultural
Planters

Landscape
Improvements

Creatiive Lighting - locations to be confirmed

Entrance Archways - locations to be confirmed

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Page 12



Appendix 2 Examples of Projects  
 
 

Project 
No  

Item Picture  
 

Description  

1 

 

City Centre Interpretive 
Trail Infrastructure 

2  
 
New web site and trail  
 

 New Interactive 
Interpretation Trails 

 
3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Entrance 
enhancements 
Including new archways 
and banners 
 

4 

 

Creative Street lighting 
scheme.  
Artist led commission to 
help design and consult  
 

5  
 

City Centre tree 
replacement 

Page 13



  
 

 

Specialist landscape 
infrastructure 
Improvements 
Including new 
landscaping along Maid 
Marion Way and 
improvements to the 
Market Square  
 

 

  

Floral Dressing  
New hanging baskets.  
Retention of planters 
and new Larger than 
life Sculptures to help 
promote Clean / Green 
priority. 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Horticultural sculpture 
trail 
2 new additional  
sculptures  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 14


	Agenda
	3 MINUTES
	4 CITY CENTRE LANDSCAPE GOOD TO GREAT IMPROVEMENTS

